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PROCEEDTINGS

July 21, 1992 1:00 p.m.

CHAIRPERSON: We do want to now move into
our briefing here on racial tensions in
Jacksonville. As I noted earlier, we adopted
this project this yvear to paralliel the national
project of the Commission which is looking into
racial tensions throughout this country. In
that, we decided that we would have briefings,
first in Miami. We were there in January. We
then went to Gainesville and looked at the
situation on a university campus, in a
university community. Now, we're here in
Jacksonville. We will be in St. Petersburg this
fall. And then wind up with a public hearing,
in looking at it from a statewide perceptive, in
the capital, Tallahassee.

After that, we will pull together a report
outlining the conditions that we have seen in
those various briefings and making appropriate
recommendations for action.

MR. DOCTOR: We have been notified by the
security forces and, of course, the hotel people

that there is a room upstairs, a ballroom, which




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

can accommodate not only the folks in this
particular setting now, but, as I understand,

there are perhaps as many folks outside as there

,are inside. There's one problem, though. We

have to be out of that room by 5:00 o'clock.
The agenda goes to 5:30. If we ask everybody to

speed up what they have to say and not take

gquite as long -- I know we have some ministers
coming in -- but if we can ask everybody to sort
of, yvyou know —-- we can move back here at 5:30.

CHAIRPERSON: What I would propose is that
we go up there. I would urge everybody to be as
concise as possible so that as many people could
participate in the entire process. But, if at
the end of 5:00 o'clock, we still have some
individuals that have not had an opportunity and
wish to bring some message to us, then I suggest
that we come back here and we will continue so
that everybody has the opportunity that wishes
to make a presentation to us.

(Interlude.)

CHATIRPERSON: The first panel includes:
Ronnie Ferguson, Deputy Mayvor, City of
Jacksonville; Anna Scheu, Vice-President,

Jacksonville Chamber of Commerce; Brian Davis,
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Chief Assistant State Attorney; Warren Jones,
the chair of the City Council -- we will need
one more chair here -- and then Vivian Jackson,
who is the Executive Director of the
Jacksonville Community Relations Commission. If
those folks will please come forward while
evervbody 1is getting settled.

As I said earlier, we are going to have to
move into the smaller room at 5:00, so the more
concise people can be in their remarks, then
everyvybody is going to have a chance to hear them
in this larger auditorium. So without anything
further, I would like to start on my right. T
would like to go through the panel, have
evervbody make a statement, and then we'll open
up the gquestions from our committee. When you
speak, will vou please identify vourself for us
and also for the reporter?

MS. SCHEU: I'm Anna Scheu and I'm Vice
President of the Jacksonville Chamber of
Commerce. And my president, Walter Lee, 1s on
his way to speak to you in just a moment. And I
would like to go ahead and pass on to the other
panelists and perhaps go last.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.
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exists in Jacksonville, but we also refuse to
allow those sentiments to flourish. We know
that inequity exists, but we are working to
overcome it. We know that Jacksonville is not
vet the best city in the nation for race
relations, but we hope that we will soon be
there. Thank you.

CHATIRPERSON: Thank you. Do any of our
panel have guestions at this time?

{No response.)

CHAIRPERSON: I have a couple of guestions
then. Miss Jackson, what is your staff level
that is available to handle discrimination
cases? What 1s the caseload? And then, what 1is
the average length of time it takes to process
that case?

MS. JACKSON: Thank you for that question.
And I will be assisted in the response to that
by Miss Deborah Parsons, who is the Assistant
Director and who has had 16 years eXxperience in
the agency. As she is moving forward, I can
tell you that we have presently eight
investigators. And, Deborah, since you're here,
you can pick it up from there.

MS. PARSONS: Good afternoon. With those




||

L

A

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

30

eight investigators, we are able to complete an
average of 4- to 500 cases a year, resolved.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Four or five hundred cases
vou've completed, and you have a thousand coming
in?

MS. PARSONS: Yes. But, by no means, are
we adequately staffed. Our federal contract
with EEOC, currently, is to resolve 231 cases.
They know that many more cases come in based on
the money allocated by Congress. EEOC also does
not give out enough money to see to it that the
cases can be effected to supplement the city's
budget of our agency.

CHATRPERSON: Of those eight
investigators, how many are paid by the city and
how many are paid by the federal government?

MS. PARSONS: Of that eight, three are
paid by the city.

CHATRPERSON: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Following up on
that, do you then issue the 180-day letters
allowing these people to file suit and is there
any sort of pro bono work done by the City? At
one time, the bar association would allow these

people to represent them in court.
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MS. PARSONS: The time limit for issuing
the right to sue of what you're talking about 1is
240 days from the time the investigation begins.

We do issue that letter -- well, eventually,
the justice department issues it, but we do have
to since the regquest for the right to sue.

There 1is very little pro bono work done in this
area. We have one or two attorneys who are
willing to work in that area. But, as you know,
since there is very 1little money, up until the
passage in 1991, involved in employment
discrimination cases, very few were pro bono.

MR. DOCTOR: I have a qguestion or two I
would 1like to raise with Mr. Ferguson, 1f I may.
Mr. Ferguson, if we can, I would like to get
back to the set-aside effort that obviously was
~- I think initiated by the members of the City
Council. It's certainly a rarity to have this
kind of action take place in a city. And I know
vyou're not here to represent the mavor, but
could you give us some indication as to the
reasoning behind the mayor's decision to wveto
the action?

MR. FERGUSON: First, let me again

reiterate that I chaired -- I was President of




A

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

32

Jacksonville Urban Leage for nine vears.
Secondly, I served on the Jacksonville Port
Authority for four years and was instrumental in
making the Port Authority provide its share of
the monies to do the disparity study after we
closed out our program following the close of
the Richmond decision.

Let me further state that I worked for two
vears along with the council president and his
committee on the bill. The mayor was elected on
a campaign that he would provide a level playing
field for all citizens of the City of
Jacksonville, but that he would also not stand
for or pass and would veto any form of
legislation that had a quota, that appeared to
be set-aside type program, that he wanted a
program that would do what needs to be done in
the black and female community. And that 1s to
develop businesses and develop
entrepreneurships. He felt that the plan that
was passed by council just simply was against
the things that he campaigned on. His charge
now is to look at elements of both pieces of --
both concepts and have them actually merge into

a document that makes sense for this whole
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community.

MR. DOCTOR: In a follow up to that, I,
obviously, come from Atlanta, Georgia. And, of
course, the state government in Georgia spends
—-— I've forgotten the exact number now —-- but
several billion dollars in contracts and
services in the State of Georgia. I think it
was during the yvear '91, lesss than one percent
of that went to minority firms, minority
business owners.

Could you share with us, if you will, the
figures as they relate to the dollar amounts of
contracts and services that were let by the city
and the percentage of that overall amount that
went to minorities?

MR. FERGUSON: I hate to refer to staff

people —-- I think Ronald Haywood {(phonetic) is
in the audience =-- and he runs that part of the
city's program. But I certainly ready to say

that, like Atlanta, we spent less than one

percent —--
MR. DOCTOR: ILh,ike Georgia?

MR. FERGUSON: Like Georgia. Okay. I'm

sorry.

MR. DOCTOR: There is a difference.
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MR. FERGUSON: There is a difference. I'm
SOorry. Like Georgila, we spent less than one
percent of the city's total contracting business
in all area with minorities and females after we
put in advance the set—-aside program that was
previously operating.

MR. DOCTOR: For the sake of the record,
the population figures, if you will, what
percentage are black and what percentage are
female?

MR. FERGUSON: I hope female is at least
half.

MR. DOCTOR: What about minorities?

MR. FERGUSON: Jacksonville's total
population is a little over 700,000 and the
black, African—-American, part of that population
is at least 25 percent.

MR. DOCTOR: So the population is 25
percent, but less than 1 percent went to
minorities?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, sir.

MR. DOCTOR: Thank you very much.

CHAIRPERSON: I'd like to ask, does the
Chamber of Commerce have a position on the

set—-aside ordinance?
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MS. SCHEU: We took a position several
vears ago on the minority set-aside progranm.
And it was recently reaffirmed. And I believe
that we are walting now for the upcoming final
look at the new project that will be coming out.

But at this point, we do have a position. We
are in favor of minority set—-aside progranm.

CHAIRPERSON: In your offices, what
proportion of your officers or board members are
African-American?

MS. SCHEU: I'm sorry. I do not know
that.

CHAIRPERSON: Would you get that for us?

MS. SCHEU: I understand that Walter Lee
is here.’

MR. LEE: I cannot answer the gquestion
regarding the Board of Governors. I don't have
those opinions available to do that.

CHAIRPERSON: Mr. Lee, would you like to
come forward?

MR. LEE: I'm Walter Lee. I'm President
of the Jacksonville Chamber of Commerce. I'm
the Chief Professional Officer for the
organization. I think yvour guestion had to do

with the munbers of minorities in our
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population. As part of our officers in the
organization, approximately 25 percent of our
executive committee, which represents our
officers, are black.

CHAIRPERSON: Hearing no addition
gquestions of this panel, I want to thank you
very much for coming. Mr. Lee, do you have
something additional you wish to add?

MR. LEE: I believe that Anna Scheu had
read our comments, the comments that had been
prepared for me, so I imagine that she covered
those very well. I don't know if she mentioned
the fact that recently, last week as a matter of
fact, on July 15th, our Board of Governors
passed a resolution entitled Development and
Growth of the Northwest Area. Did she mention
that? That was not part of our presentation
that had been prepared for reading. So I would
like to read you the whereas to, therefore be
it, resolved clauses.

Now therefore be it resolved, the Board of
Governors of the Jacksonville Chamber of
Commerce encourages the Jacksonville Chamber of
Commerce Foundation to provide appropriate

available resources through its challenge fund
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to develop an action plan and to promote growth
and development in the Northside.

Be it further resolved that the Minority
Economic Development Board assist in this effort
and that the Chamber encourages the city to
enhance underdeveloped areas of the city to
provide for balanced growth so there will be no
reason for seething urban problems to be present
in Jacksonville.

This was passed last Wednesday. And
pursuant to this, we will be moving ahead with
making an effort to do some planning as it
affects the Northside as part of our Minority
Economic Development Program.

CHAIRPERSON: Thank you.

MR. DOCTOR: Mr. Chairman, I couldn't help
but give some thought to the comment that was
made by Mr. Ferguson in response to the rational
employed by the mayor in vetoing the set—-aside
ordinance. You use the words "level playving
field.™" I think it is very, very clear, if you
stop to analyze the figures, the field has never
been level. And I can't help but be struck by
this play on words. If you stop to analyze the

figures, as we have obviously here during the
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past minute or two, it becomes very, very clear
that if you have a population, a minority
population, somewhere in the neighborhood of 25
percent, but receives less than 1 percent of the
contractual monies that are led by the city --
and I can well imagine a significant number of
those monies are also federal monies --

I also can't help but be struck by the
fact that women obviously make up better than 50
percent of the overall population of the area.

I don't know what the figures are for women
businesspersons and the dollar amounts that they
receive in terms of contracts from the city, but
I would guess that they are probably just as
dismal as those figures for minorities. I
regret, believe me, that the mavor is not here.
And I hope yvou don't take any of this
personally, but this is the kind of
inconsistency which promotes divisiveness and
racial tension.

If yvou would, would yvou indicate to the
mayvor the comments that I've just shared with
vyou and with the audience because I think he
needs to understand that if, in effect, we are

truly going to make a level playing field, those
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figures must change. I submit to you that if
the figures are less than one percent now, in
past years they probably were even less than
that. And this is the kind of situation that T
think we have to deal with to give the total
community a sense of inclusiveness which helps
to promote better race relations, which helps to
positively impact racial tensions. I would
appreciate your passing those onto the mayor for
me.

MR. FERGUSON: I will, sir.

MR. DOCTOR: Thank you very much.

CHATRPERSON: I would just like to ask one
more question of Mr. Lee. As dismal as the
percentages are on public participation, public
contracts with minority businesses, in many
areas, the public sector is literally all that
minority businesses live on. What are the
efforts of the Chamber of Commerce to tie
minority contractor and minority businesses to
opportunities in the private sector?

MR. LEE: That's a very good guestion. We
have a purchasing program that we are working
rather aggressively with at the chamber through

our Minority Economic Development Progran,
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through our Minority Planning Development
Department, that is making an effort to pair
purchasing opportunities with minority
businesses. The program is getting some
increased incentive as a result of a program
that we are now involved with that's in the
embryonic stages. I believe that, frankly, I've
seen some good progress, not as much progress as
I would like to see, frankly, but good solid
progress. And it's something we, as a chamber
organization, have made a commitment to.

And the Minority Economic Development
Department within our organization is putting
the purchasing initiative, frankly, at the very
top of its efforts now and in the future. I
think in the next near, we are going to see some
even better results from our private purchasing
initiatives.

CHATIRPERSON: Do you keep available any
statistics on the dollar values of those amounts
at the present time?

MR. LEE: I could get those. I don't have
them from memory. I just don't recall. But T
could easily get them and provide them to you.

CHATIRPERSON: I would appreciate having
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that. And T understand we didn't ask you in
advance, so I didn't expect you to have themn.
But I think 1t would be valuable for us to have
them and also it would be very value to look at
it because you say you have made an increased
effort to be able to measure any progress.

MR. LEE: We have a a program that I think
is, frankly, when it reaches its maturity, will
be unigue, and I would like to provide you with
some information on that, too. I think it's
going to have some rather exXciting implications
for both our minority and our small business
sectors here in Jacksonville. It's something, I
think, when it reaches its maturity, that we can
all be very proud of. I will happy to give you
the details of that.

CHAIRPERSON: Thank you.

MR. DAVIS: I would like to just add on a

kind of a consequential note. I'm involved in

the criminal justice system. Counted since last
August, last Friday -- I think the number has
increased over the weekend —-- 28 black youths

under the age of 25 have lost their lives in the
black community. The rate of violence in that

community is 43 plus percent. In Mandarin,
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which is a predominantly white community, it's 3
percent.

In talking about that number with young
people who are affected by and sometimes
effecting the violence, we move from the subject
of violence to the subject of opportunity and
talked about education, talked about activities,
having something meaningful to do. It's not
happening in the community. You need to be
aware of that.

MR. DOCTOR: Mr. Davis brought up a very
good point. I have had an occasion to wvisit in
L.os Angeles in the aftermath of the uprisings
out there. And it was ever so clear to me that
the unemployment figures for young black males
between the ages of 18 and 24 in South Central
Los Angeles range up to 66 percent. I don't
know what the figures are here in Jacksonville.
I would like to ask somebody that in the minute.

But, before that, I would like to continue with
my comments. It's 66 percent in Los Angeles. A
lot those young folks, obviously, are not a part
of the main stream economic system. And as a
result of not being brought into the main streamn

of the economic system, they have literally
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figures are around 50 percent. The actual
figures have to be at least 65, 70 percent, have
to be.

MR. DOCTOR: Thank you very mnuch.

MS. JACKSON: For your further
information, again in my role and function, I do
have available with me some initial studies,
some of them in draft form, prepared by the
Jacksonville Sheriff's Office that speak
directly to Mr. Davis' comments. And I am at
liberty through Mr. Gary Higgins, who is Chief
of the Planning and Research Division at the
Sheriff's Office, to share this information with
you. The studies are specifically a black male
study study covering the ages 15 through 21 of
black male youths in the city. A program
management study, first guarter gain summary, in
draft form, again, prepared by the Office of the
Sheriff, a 120-day study prepared by that same
office which targeted specific neighborhoods,
those on the North and Westside, specifically.
and a summary of serious habitual offenders,
again, youths ages 15 to 21. That ends the
information from the Sheriff's Office.

And for your further information, a
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Florida Kids Count, a key fact, and you may
familiar with this, a news release obtained by
my office from the Florida Center for Children
and Youth based in Tallahassee, Florida. The
JCCI Study on voung black males, which
incorporates most of the information compiled by
the Jacksonville sSheriff's Office, is in draft
form. And I do not believe it has been
officially released as yet and has probably been
amended in some small way, but I do have
available a draft report, again, on the young
black males compiled by the JCCI. And I suspect
that our figures are just as appalling as those
statistics from Los Angeles, Tennessee, and
other places.

CHATIRPERSON: Thank you very much.

MS. JACKSON: You're welcome.

MR. LEE: I would like to add one thing in
the way of detail. We were talking earlier
about the minority members of our Executive
Committee at the chamber. I just made a note of
the names for the information of this group.
Those people include: Warren Jones, our
president of the city council who sits as a

member of our executive committee; Dr. Adam
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Herbert, who's President of University of North
Florida, who, incidentally, will be Chief
Volunteer Officer of our chamber in 1992 or
Chairman of the Board; Isaiah Roman, who is in
the insurance business; and Carlton Jones, who
is in the real estate business. These are the
African-American people who sit on our executive
committee at the Chamber.

And, interestingly enough, over the last
18 months or so, the percent of minority
businesses within our membership has gone from
one percent of our membership to four percent of
the membership. We made a concerted effort to
reseat more minority business into the
Jacksonville Chamber of Commence. As I say, 18
months ago, we had about 50 African—American
members and today we have in excess of 200 in
our chamber. We feel we have made substantial

progress. We feel we made some good progress 1in

that area.

CHATIRPERSON: Has the chamber become
involved in any specific outreach efforts to
increase employment, particularly here in this
summer period that we're undergoing right now?

MR. LEE: We've been very supportive of
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the Private Industry Council's Summer Youth
Employment Program. We have helped them
advertise and promoted it. And I'm sure you're
familiar with the PICK Program. We have been
active in that regard.

CHATRPERSON: Has there been anything.
though, beyond the participation in the PICK
Program?

MR. LEE: In terms of summer youth
employment?

CHAIRPERSON: Right, or youth employment,
in general.

MR. LEE: Not to date, there has not been.
CHATIRPERSON: Thank you very much for
coming. We appreciate very much your taking the

time out to be with us this afternoon. And,
certainly, I would appreciate having the
additional material that people have mentioned
that they have available.

Our next panel will consist of Miss Willye
F. Dennis, Lewis James Carter, III, Robert
Ingram and Reverend Perry Robinson. If these
individuals would come forward and take a seat
at the table, we would appreciate it.

I see that Mr. Ingram is not here at the
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And somewhere and somehow, we have got to f£ind
and focus in on ways and means to achieve that
end.

I mentioned that I came here to do work
with Edward Waters College. It is the oldest
historical and traditional institution in the
state of Florida, black, African—-American. And
vet, its role has been relegated to something
over there on Kings Road, something called the
Northwest Quadrant, and it's insidious and it
strikes harm to harmony in this community. T
suspect that somewhere along the line it would
be profitable to suggest that there have been
some things that have been beneficial and,
obviously, I would say that there have been.

When you translate this community from the
'60s to the '80s, yes, we can talk about elected
officials; we can talk about folks that have
been able to maintain themselves in various
endeavors, in employment endeavors, in both the
private and the public sector. And yet
somewhere along the line, our spirit has been
robbed because there is an inability in terms of
the general community to really in a very firm

and positively way acknowledge the real economic
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conditions of African—-Americans in this
community.

We know how to talk to one another. Often
times, we're talking past one another. We
assemble ourselves together to discuss tensions
and those tensions and concerns raving across
the country. There is no more or less racism in
Jacksonville than in perhaps any other major
urban area in this country. We all recognize
that. We know that. Someone wonders sometimes,
when we sit forth in front of panels for these
kinds of discussions, where and what is the
bottom and where are we attempting to go. I
suggest and very firmly believe that there's
much that has to be done in terms of the total
apparatus of the community of Jacksonville if
they are, indeed, serious by the concerns of
African~-American folks.

I would also suggest in very, very firm
terms that all of the problems that are
associated with racism in this country, not
necessarily delivered to "total community"”
because there are many things that we need to
address within our own. One of things that we

attempt to fashion at Edward Waters College, and
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will continue to do through this Institute for
Urban Studies, is to bring together the very
segments of our community within a very
reasonable and sane way and spend more time, in
my judgment, with one another. We are, to
often, spending a lot of time against one
another. There's a cycle that goes into that
that has to be completely eliminated, destroyved,
in a way that we can understand it and
appreciate the need. For whatever our needs may
be, from A to Z, that those views need to be
addressed and deeply understood and they need to
be responded to.

I just came out of the Democratic National
Convention this week and I wrote an editorial.
And T would like to do some excerpts from that.
It sort of coincides with why we are here. When
it comes to addressing long and needed change in
Jacksonville by African—-Americans, even those
who have talked of power and purpose, that

attitude, these things take time. Now the

prevailing attitude is: Let's find out what we
need to do and let's do it. Let's be very, very
clear. Some things need to happen. Our

responsibilities have got to be the
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African—-American needs. It's got to be an all
inclusive effort. All things cannot be blamed
directly on racism.

Familiar or not, this town has escalated
itself. I understand it is now number four,
black-on-black crime. African-American children
are three times more likely than whites to liwve
in single-parent households. Black
African-American families living in public
housing in Jacksonville is 93 percent of all
single-family households. We can go on and on
and on. We know the problens. What we need to
do is be aggressive enough to try to f£find ways
and means to achieve solutions to this
particular area.

One of the things that I'm most proud of
in the less than a year I've back in this
community is an attempt to bring our comnmunity
together. It was known, and still is known, as
the African—Americans for positive affirmation.
You've heard prior testimony that talks about
the Santora flap, talks about some other things
that were very critical in the minds of those
who were concerned about tensions around

December. But the basis of the information that
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was provided to the total community of
Jacksonville came from the coming together of a
diverse group of African—-Americans in this
community. And it was put forth to this
community as a ways and means to create an
atmosphere of belonging and that came from this
group known as African-Americans for positive
affirmation.

What has been done with that document or
the intention of any carrying out of those kinds
of responsibilities in term of the powers to be
is another kind of gquestion. What I'm
attempting to say is that we know the problen.
We understand succinctly what racism is all
about. What we are trying to reach for are the
levels of just basic human concern so that if,
in fact, there is a realization or an
understanding that there is a society that's
going to be no more than fair, then we'll call
up in the air, right now, in this town,
set—-asides when, in fact, there has been law
over the many, many vears that if, in fact,
fairness was applied, we wouldn't even have to
be talking about set—asides. That's the kind of

reality that we've got to deal with.
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A judge right now, I believe, is convening
a jury to look at somebody named Loeb who did
something down there at the Beaches. It reminds
some people of the possibilities of what
happened out there in Los Angeles. That's
happening as we're sitting here now is to try to
find 12 jurors who might be able to address that
particular situation.

We talk about set-asides. And we have two
rather proud African—American people up in
Congress —-- and there's a whole lot of people
out here that's got all kinds of
configurations of "minority access to the
congressal district" -- but these two folks
have served their time. And yet one of the
groups that would probably be associated with
a determination on the set-aside decided to
endorse quickly a candidate who happens to be
white, endorsed guickly with no need to talk
to Senator Girardeau or State Representative
Corrine Brown, and said we have already made
up our minds. It doesn’'t have a thing to do
with Andy Johnson; we don't even know the man.
But my point is that they quickly endorsed

him. We don't need to talk to the other folks
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that are running. Yet that would be one of
the groups that would be engaging in some
consideration of what we might be able to do
in terms of doing economic development
business in this community. And the list runs
on and on.

And I'm going to stop on that one because

I got a call this morning related to this

meeting. And I'm a very gracious kind of a
person. I don't have all the answers. I have a
few. I say it and I mean it quite sincerely, I

spent my life and will continue to spend my 1life
attempting to deal with the problems that we are
talking about here. But there was a concern
about the makeup of this and the makeup of that.
And it sounded rather legitimate to me. And I
want to ask a brother whose been involved with
me over a period of time and he's controversial,
as far as most African—-Americans go. And he

says sometimes some things that are not always

appropriate, but I want him to take -- 1if it's
all right -- the remainder of my time because he
has something to say. He's worked hard at it.

With no further ado, like would ask Jessie

Nipper if he would come forward to complete the
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and unemployment, the school dropout rate, we
need some statistics on the dollars which have
come into Jacksonville through HUD and the lack
of many of those dollars which have gone into
the black community. And while I don't have the
figures, I think that it would be significant
this if those figures were garnered and looked
at with regard to those monies because they are
federal dollars and many of the people who pay
in income tax are not the recipients of some of
the return of those federal dollars.

It seems to me, and I've said this on many
occasions, after the Judge Santora fiasco, and
many of us took a leadership role in that and
were a part of Jacksonville Today and
Jacksonville Insight and all the other
committees, some unknown, which came about as a
result of that, and I made the statement -- T
could never get anybody to publish it —-- that
America seems to be going to pot because America
continues to reinvent the wheel. And I said
that with regard to Jacksonville, too.
Jacksonville is going to pot because we continue
to reinvent the wheel.

I cannot understand why in 1992 we are
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discussing a minority set—-aside deal. That is
ludicrous as far as I am concerned. And why the
NAACP did not take a leadership role -- we have
just come back from the national convention of
the NAACP and thrust throughout that was: Is
anybody listening? Does anybody care? And I
was so sure that -- T knew that there were
persons in Jacksonville who could handle
anything with regard to minority set-aside, but
I still asked the question why are we discussing
a minority set—aside in 1992.

Those of us who are concerned, are we
surprised that a minority set-aside bill was
vetoed. I am not surprised. And I think that
if those of us who participated in the first
minority set—-aside -- I'm sure that one other
person in the audience is going to deal with
this when his time comes -- but those of us who
participated in the neighborhood of 1982 or 1983
in the minority set-side program, I'm sure we
asked the gquestion: What good d4id it do to get
a disparity study where the c¢city spent over
$400,000? That money could have been given to
contractors as far as I was concerned. That

needs to be noted.
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I think that Jacksonville -- some people
say Jacksonville is on a roll. Well,
Jacksonville might be on a roll. If T was on a
roll, I was rolling the wrong way. And I think
that if we are on a roll, then we need to get
together. And my message to you and my message
would be to the City of Jacksonville and all of
us who are concerned and to all of us who have
some hope that we are going to be able to work
together and not have the same kinds of things
that happened in Los Angeles, that, first of
all, all of the resources for the community
needs to be utilized. In this community, that
is not the case.

The Jacksonville Youth Council of the
NAACP holds teen summits. And if you want to
get an ear full, you need to hear what the young
people who have lost hope talk about and who
could care a less about some of the things
that's going on with regard to the business
community because they feel they don't want to
ever even be a part of that.

I hope that as a result of your being
here —- and as I said when we organized

Jacksonville Together as one of the committees,
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and racial tension in America, he appointed a
commission at that time to find out what the
problem was. And the commission brought back
their report. They found out that they are
separate -- amen —-- whites and blacks are
separate and they are unequal when it comes down
to rights, one right for black and one right for
white. There is a dual system. We find out
even our court system, there is a dual system
where whites get less time than blacks. This is
what creates racial tension.

We find out also blacks were angry because
of poverty in Jacksonville. We cannot get a
job. And when we do go on the job, sometimes
they say you're overgqualified. And that's
another cause to create racial tension.

There is also the poor housing condition
in Jacksonville. Let me give you one of them,
the Blodgett Homes area, Blodgett. They took
the Blodgett Homes down, some of those places,
and they tried to find places for blacks, what
they call scatter housing. We find out that
they built these houses in poor condition for
black people to live in. We find out later from

the HUD system, they made poor buildings.
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They've got a lead poison problem. We've got
all kinds of problems.

What we are saying today and I would like
to leave this message since you're here, we hope
and pray that after you get to hear this other
testimony that something will be done. Some
months ago, we had a judge —-—- we'wve heard it
before —- made some remarks concerning black
American people. We marched. We did march.
Something was done.

Then the mayor appointed =-- which I have
here —-- representing community healing. We
stayed in those meetings some three or four
months trying to find healing in this community.

I have this -- I'm going to leave it with yvou

-— some of the 44 recommendations and we won't

have to do them now. And one of them is the
minority set-aside. The rule of one was to get
rid of it. But, you know, to my surprise, we

were insulted when the city council passed this
bill and then he vetoed it.

Well, that's enough. It can even make a
preacher mad because of the fact I spent so many
hours, I made every meeting, every meeting I

tried to make. We assumed that he was going to
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do the right thing. Jesus said -- I've got to
quote my Scripture -- a house divided against
itself cannot stand.

We, as a people in Jacksonville, we can no
longer take this. We can no longer take the
back seat. We are first-class citizens. We are
now businessmen in our community. We don't want
handouts. We are men. We are qualified to run
our own businesses. We're not Jjust like the
sharecroppers I left in Alabama. Oh, no, I pray
to God I left that behind me. I'm looking for a
new day. And we're trying to open up
opportunities for our children. We send them to
college and tell them to qualify themselves to
get the job. But when they come, they say we
cannot hire you.

One more thing and I'm finished. We are
tired. We've got white people that we fought
wars with -- amen —-- come out to our church and
have more opportunities than blacks. They come
every night. The banks will loan them money.
They're in business the next month. And vet
we've got black businessmen left out on their
own. Sure, they're going to come up with money

to build churches, but they tell us who to
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discrimination drawn.

I would appreciate knowing your reason for
your choice. Tt is not too late to change your
decision since the school board has not acted on
yvour list. I am encouraging coaches to contact
their school board members.

The gentleman was hired and, according to
the records, had never even been on a football
field. Here is a copy the kind of hate that was
dispersed in the schools to black people by the
Ku Klux Klan in this community in 1991 and '92
and as recent as January, February of this year,
not 20 or 30 years ago, but this year, this year
of our Liord and Savior, Jesus Christ, 1992.

This is a copy of the testimony by members of
this community to the racial and ethnic bias
committee by the criminal Jjustice system in this
State of Florida. This is Jjust a transcript on
Jacksonville. And one of things that came out
in that, not only are young black kids fearful
of white policemen in 1992, but they are fearful
of the young African—-American policemen that
have less than five or six years experience
because of their attitudes, their orientation,

toward street people in this community.
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We passed a bond issue in 1987 of over
$314 million. Bight new schools were
constructed in Duval County, none of them in the
African-American community. One school cost
some $31 million. And that total amount of
money has not been spent in schools in the
African-American communities of this city. And
all of you on this panel are aware that the
anchors in any African-American community, not
only Jacksonville, but anywhere in this country,
have been the public school school and churches.
If you destroy public education facilities in
our community, what do you have we do look for?
There's an effort in this community to control
African—-Americans and the few of them have had
the guts to stand up and be men and say you will
not control me as a puppet on a string.

The banks have attempted to try and not
make loans to Afro-American churches unless they
agree to the contractors that the banks want
them to have. And none of those banks have
attempted to try to have an Afro—-American
contractors. We can go on and on and on.

When yvou look at public housing, the kind

b
of conditions that exist, according to the
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federal order, they are not decent enough for
humans to live in. It ought to be disgraceful.
When you look at the same money that could have
gone into public housing should have gone into
it to help improve them and develop themn.

Loans were made to Harbor Masters.
Holiday Inns were built in affluent white
communities. Sears received $5 million. The
federal audit said they had no business ever
receiving the money. But yvet, where is the
concern for Afro-Americans in this community?
The banks are atrocious. The Caucasians cannot
have a high school diploma and have an income of
less than $14,000 a year and can get a quarter
of a million dollar loan when there are
Afro—-Americans in this community walking around
with three and four degrees in their hip pocket
and earning $90,000 a year and can't even get a
loan from the bank. There are records there to
show 1it.

And, Mr. Doctor, I must say this directly
to you. Twenty years ago, when you came into
this community to do a report on police/
community detente, the sheriff and undersheriff

went all the way to the White House to get vou
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fired. And it was men in this community that
went to Ron Brown, who was Vice President of the
National Urban League, to do what was necessary.
Believe vou me, in 1992, the attitudes of the
police department is no different. And if you
say today what you said then, I believe they're
going to try to get yvou fired again. You can
react to me, but vou ought to be concerned not
about the messenger, but about the message.

We have documents here where when the bond
issue was validated for the schools, the judge
who validated them said at that time that based
on what he saw in those bonds and based on what
he saw, the monkey business on television by the
school board, that a certain group in this
community was about to be screwed. When the
deal came down, we never even knew where those
eight schools were until they were up out of the
ground. Afro-Americans are going to help pay
those bonds. Their taxes are going to help pay
them. And I have to be honest about it. It's
not all white peocple's fault. We had two
Afro-Americans sitting on the school board at
the time. You have people in this room who have

sat on authorities and they have worked to try
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to get it done.

You asked the gentleman up here Jjust now
about the facts and the figures. I would 3just
like to go down one area that was found in the
disparity studies, the findings. The City of
Jacksonville, professional services from 1979 to
1989: '79, owed $3 million; '80, almost a
million dollars; '81l, over $5 million; '82, $3
million; '83, $3 nmillion; '84, $10 million; '85,
$5 million plus; '86, $7 million; '87, $15
million; '88, $14 million; '89, $8 million.

The percentages that was received by
Afro-Americans are: '79, zero; '80, zero; '81,
zZzero; '82, .26 percent; '83, .46 percent; '84,
Zero; '85, 1.65 percent; 86, .09 percent; '87,
zero; '88, zero; '89, 2.056. They know. They
sit on the committee that they're presenting.
They are blatant lies if they said they didn't
know 1it. They had copies of it. That's the way
that it has continued.

And the JEA, the electric authority, from
1979 to 1989, not a penny went to Afro—-American
contractors. The electric authority profits
over $26 million a yvear in profits, net profit.

We can go on and on and on. We can take the
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rest of the afternoon and would not touch the
surface. It exists. It is blatant.

A kid cannot get an opportunity in this
community. You asked the question about the
statistics on the black youth unemployment. The
reality of it is it's above 76 percent. Kids
that are hired during the summer, black youths
wear red cap and are out cleaning in the
streets. Every one of them on military
installations this summer were cleaning up. The
white kids are in City Hall, the Courthouse, and
other government agencies being in training
programs. And the money was designed and
intended to come into this community to train
Afro—American kids.

I am not here to try to impress anybody.
I'm here to tell the truth. It's disgraceful.
Then when someone tries to say something, to say
what the facts are, then they have to be
searched in order to come in. They have to be
carried through this and others are not
searched. It's totally unfair, it's wrong, and
it's biased. The whole structure of how this
program was planned today was wrong.

Bobby Doctor, I've been knowing you a long
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what in the hell do I want to try to kill vou
for?

CHAIRPERSON: I think, at this point,
vyou're out of order.

MR. NIPPER: I just want to tell the
truth.

CHATIRPERSON: Then continue with your
testimony in terms of the disparity and the
statistics you've brought for us. We f£ind it
valuable. But the discussion in terms of --

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's the

frustration that we're going through in this

83

system. Do vyou want to hear the truth or do you

want to regulate us so we cannot tell the truth.

That's the truth, mister.
CHATIRPERSON: I want to hear your

statements about --

MR. NIPPER: Here's a copy of the letter

about the $5 million from the city. We are not

here whistling Dixie. We're talking to facts.

CHAIRPERSON: And that's the information I

want you to present here.

MR. NIPPER: There's a whole complete

thing on what is happening in education in this
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community. We went, a selected group in this
community, went to the corporate community,
chamber, president, president of the NFL
Touchdown Club, and all. We stated the facts to
them, just like it is. We told them over a year
ago that this problem occurred. They said,
"Well, the black people we are listening to said
there ain't no problem. Everyvthing is all
right."

Well, here we are here, July the 21lst,
1992. You can see it for yourself. This town
does not deserve an NFL team because of the
blatant racism. This community does not deserve
any part of the Olympics because of the blatant
racism. Every federal dollar that comes into
this community needs to be stopped in 1991. It

needs to be stopped, not threatened to stop it,

but cut it off. Jacksonville does not deserve
it. I know there's some people that don't want
to hear what I'm sayving. No problem.

They said we didn't know what we were
talking about about the schools, but it became a
reality. They said we didn't know what we were
talking about about public housing, but the

federal audit says different. And todavy,




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

85

they're before Congress trying to justify it.
It's wrong.

How can you expect to have kids that want
to be a part -- want to be involved in the
process when this is the way it is. Sure, they
feel like they can get a better shot by selling
drugs. We know it's wrong, but what can we tell
then. What can we offer them as an alternative?

The mayor said that the bill that he
vetoed was a welfare bill. People running
around talking about save the children. Give
the daddies some jobs and they can take care of
the children. Afro—-American people by
tradition, all the way back to the motherland,
have been loving, caring, and they have a deep
family tradition. It was not until they came to
America, it was not until they were exposed to
your people, your race and color, that the
family structure was destroyed. Never was a
purpose behind it. People destroyed. And we
need to help the daddies out of it. You can
control it. We are saying the opportunity is
here. And I realize some other people are
going to say some things and I should probably

stop at this point to keep from becoming
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emotional because it's wrong. There have been
people in this community who have been paid to
do what is right. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON: Do we have any questions of
the panel?

MS. LITTLER: Is your ministerial alliance
segregated or is it integrated?

REVEREND ROBINSON: It's all black.

MS. LITTLER: I ask that everywhere I go
because my father was a Baptist minister. And
talking about the coach, I was in a position to
hire a coach one time and I asked him where he
got his training. And he said watching
television, but we didn't hire him.

MR. NIPPER: As I response to that, I have
to say, I'm obligated to say, there's a
gentleman in this audience, whatever I know
about sports, whatever Herbert Black (phonetic)
knows about sports, he is responsible for that.
And I really believe that what he d4id to us 35
vears ago, helps us to be the men that we are.
And that's why it grates me.

CHAIRPERSON: I have a guestion of Miss
Dennis. Of your complaints, can you tell us the

number that were police-related complaints?




,_"l

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

87

MS. DENNIS: No, I didn't bring statistics
broken down. But what we have noticed is that
more and more of the police brutality complaints
are outnumbering the Jjob and the age and the sex
discrimination complaints.

CHATRPERSON: So you're saying there is a
significance number?

MS. DENNIS: There is a significant
number, yves.

CHAIRPERSON: Whereas only two were
reported to the Community Relations Commission?

MS. DENNIS: Well, certainly more than 2
out of 2,562 that came through NAACP.

CHATRPERSON: Why do vou think that you're
getting complaints where the Commission is not
getting complaints in this issue?

MS. DENNIS: Well, I think that we are
close to the people in a sense. I mean, I serve
on the Community Racial Commission, but I'm down
there. But they're a building downtown on the
seventh floor. All the barriers are there. We
are right there close to the people.

MR. NIPPER: May I comment on that?

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR. NIPPER: One of the very viable
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organizations in this community that was not
even called to participated is the D. W. Perkins
Bar Association. That's a black bar association
and it was formulated because they were not
permitted to join the white bar association.
Representatives of that organization ought to be
allowed to tell of the many police
discrimination cases and brutality cases that
they are receiving on a daily basis. And I
think that organization -—- I really feel they
deserve the right to be heard before this panel
because of their input and their involvement in
this community. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON: Thank yvou for that input and
I think we will certainly ask staff to make
contact with that organization and they can
submit any information they have. I think your
statement here is guite important because if one
would listen to the earlier testimony, one would
indicate that there was a significant complaint
filed by people having difficulty with the
police. Yet, we all know that usually when we
have an eruption in the community, the trigger
for that eruption is an interaction with the

police. And I would hope that the official
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community would pay attention to the kinds of
complaints that the NAACP has and the black bar
association, as well, in terms of police and
community efforts and not just look at those
that are coming in officially.

MS. DENNIS: When we were trying to deal
with the issues following the L. A. riots, I
made the comment to the officials that if
something should erupt that we hope that the
policemen were trained because I know during the
riots in the '60s the police caused more trouble
then the people in the streets. And I made that
statement.

MR. DOCTOR: I certainly agree with Mr.
Chairman. There are several questions and
comments I'm going to make. Mr. Carter, I'm
particularly concerned about the comments you
made regarding the disintegration of the black
family. I guess the question is: To what
extent does institutional racism or to what
extent has institutional racism played toward
disintegration?

MR. CARTER: Let me try to answer that one
or two ways. Integration, as I view it, the

black family, needs to be looked at in the sense
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of the imposition of racism in this society and
the implementation in a sense of almost social
welfare laws by design, by design, that have
created an atmosphere that takes away from any
similarity of family. My sense is this: That
while we recognize that there had been some
difficult times associated with our family
structure, I believe that there is more strength
in the black family than has been recognized and
I believe that strength has been there since day
one.

We are, perhaps, essentially, the only
ethniec group in this country who by virtue of
slavery had our families torn asunder even
before we got here. But the strength of that
family has been able to realize itself over the
period of time that we've been here. So T
don't spend a lot of time dwelling on the
disintegration. We know the legislative
reports that have added to that and has created
the negatives in all families, males by wvirtue
of ADCF payments and all these other things
that essentially say stay away from the home
because if vou don't stay away from the home

the welfare check ain't there. That's law
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designed by our legislators. That impedes any
notion of family stability.

On the other hand, I think what we need to
focus on, gquite frankly, are those folks who
have been able to make something happen in a
very positive way with all those odds that have
been against themn. It's sort of 1like when we
visit Harlem, it's always talking about
disintegration and the problems that are
associated with a section of New York City known
as Harlem when there's never any talk given to
those persons who have, through all that mess,
been able to able live secure, positive,
affirmative lives. And it's the same thing as
it relates to sometimes our treatment of the
disintegration of the black family when we ought
to be looking at the positive aspects of what
has occurred in those families.

I remember some time ago when we initiated
in this town in the '60s what was known as JGO,
the property progran. And we're talking now
about Blodgett Homes, what is left of Blodgett
Homes today. But I can remember so well that
some home economists went into Blodgett Homes

and they saw some folks in there who represented




|

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

92

the family with no dollars but were able to keep
things in tact. And the lesson was that the
folks that was supposed to have the skills and
knowledge about how you do that, thev're the
ones that learned the lesson. It was the folks
that didn't have anything were able to make sure
that everything was appropriately delivered
within that basic structure.

I believe that there's more strength to
the family structure currently than we are given
credit for and recognize that there are problems
and impediments that have been wasted in many
instances in certain aspects of the structure.
But I spend more time, I think, with the jovous
recognition, with all the social 1lls that we
talk about, that there is a firm, inviolable
structure within the African-American community
and I'm proud of it.

MR. DOCTOR: Miss Dennis, I was
particularly moved by the comment that you made:
Is anybody really listening? Does anybody
really care? That sounds like a theme to a song
that somebody ought to write. I'm particularly
concerned about a tour that I took on yesterday

in the heart of the black community in the midst




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

93

of all of the public housing boarded up,
forsaken, given up on. I also recognize public
policy which took place in this country during
the decade of the '80s which literally cut the
budget of HUD by some 70 percent. The
connection between HUD's cut in its budget by 70
percent and the boarded-up buildings here in
Jacksonville is very, very clear some years
later.

I guess the question that comes to mind,
in the midst of all of this bleakness that T
witessed yvyesterday, what do you say to a
national government; what do you say to a
national government which has allowed public
policy to have what I witnessed yesterday happen
in this city?

MS. DENNIS: What we have been saying and
what we have said is to pay attention to where
the dollars have gone. Many of us in this
community have said that to HUD for years. And
I'm sure there are several people in this
community that have asked how -- the gquestion is
how could a government permit that to happen. T
hope you went to Golfbrook because even though

Blodgett looks like somewhere out of heaven,
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Reverend, Golfbrook is the epitome of
nothingness. We have bought that to the
attention of the officials at HUD.

I don't have the figures, but I believe
coming out of that audit was a report that for
the amount of money that has come into HUD,
every tenant in HUD public housing could have
bought a house to the tune of §55,000. When vou
multiply that by thousands, that money has gone
somewhere, but it certainly did not go into
repair and refurbishing and renovation. And so
I say how can a government entity be permitted
to not pay attention to the dollars. That's why
I wanted to bring up HUD, because it had not
been brought up, and it plays a significant role
in whatever is taking place in this country.

And I don't mean just the black community; I
mean the total community because those are all
of our dollars.

CHAIRPERSON: Thank you.

MS. GARCIA: Miss Dennis, I had a couple
of gquestions to ask you. With respect to some
of the economic issues you have been talking
about, do you see any programs or involvement in

the CRA initiative? You talked about that
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earlier. Did it look like they were going to
provide any hope for positive action?

MS. DENNIS: Well, some of the things we

come up with -- I don't want to say "programs to
resolve those problems." I haven't seen the
results. Maybe some of the contractors have. I
know Ronnie has come up with a progran. And
it's supposed to be a program where we -- when I

say we, I mean the people in the black community
—— can be helped as far as mortgages are
concerned. And it seems as if the banks are
dealing more with mortgages than they are with
loans. We see in the black community, the banks
will loan us money to buy a car and they'1l1l
always come and get it if we don't pay for it.
And they'll loan us some money, some money to
buy a house sometimes, because they know that
eventually if we don't make those mortgage
payments they're going to come and get that
back.

Now what they are telling us or the CRA
commitment is that they are coming up with new
programs which will help us to secure monies
more easily for mortgages. But what some of us

have said -- I'm in business myself. Why many
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people in this community think that I get the
money, I don't get the money, either. It's
difficult to get a loan in Jacksonville unless
vou've got all kinds of resources and most of us
don't have -- it's a multiplier effect. We
weren't ever able to really make big money so
that we could invest so we don't have all that
equity and so forth. So one thing leads to
another.

I know Jessie got emotional one way. I
get emotional when I think about how our parents
who made nothing was able to save money and put
it in these banks for years and we d4id not get
the benefit of any that money. They made money
off our little money and I think that they owe
us a great deal. And I've said this guite
frequently and often to these banks, you owe us.

So I hope I answered the question.

MS. GARCIA: Well, I guess what I'm
hearing is that there are some programs that are
being developed, but I didn't really get the
sense that you felt 1like that you were -- the
black community is really at fault to the extent
that you're having to --

MS. DENNIS: Mayvybe the contractors will be




10

11

12

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

97

able to answer the gquestion. I'm not in the
market for a house. I don't plan to be in the
market to get the benefit of this money. So
it's difficult for me to say firsthand or
directly whether or not the program works. They
tell us that they have the program on the books.
Now whether or not the programs are working
remains to be seen.

MS. GARCIA: You're not seeing anything,
though, that --

MS. DENNIS: I'm going to wait. I'n
waiting to see it.

MS. GARCIA: What about with respect to
lending money for minority businesses because
that's all --

MS. DENNIS: A lot of us in business have
a hard time. Like I said before, it's a
multiplier effect. You've got to have the
collateral.

MS. DENNIS: Miss Jackson has Jjust brought
me an article. Blacks and Hispanics lose more
home loans. I'm sure i1f you read it, it will
bare out some of the things that you just heard.

It's just difficult. It's difficult to get

money . When I can see us —- when I say us, I
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mean all of us in the black community; women,
those of us who are struggling with business --
when we can see our cash flow without having to
go to the bank to get a line of credit —-- they
won't even give me a line of credit -- and to
really have money so that we can make our
payrolls without suffering and almost having a
heart attack, when we can see that, when I can
see that, then I will really believe that the
banks and the other institutions who said that
they are going to help us, we will be helped.

But it has to be seen and it cannot just be on

paper.

MS. GARCIA: Thank you.

REVEREND ROBINSON: This is one of the
problems that I mentioned. When you see the

Koreans and the Japanese overnight come in
business and black people have struggled in this
land for a century and we can't get a loan,
that's sayving something. Just overnight.
That's enough to make even a preacher get mad.
MS. DENNIS: This is something that we are
working on, many of us are working on
wholeheartedly in the area of CRA and the

Humbler Reports, because this is an area where
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Another thing that has created a strong
feelings: Millions of dollars of community
development money went into the Jacksonville
Landing through some fancy paperwork to foster
it under the guise of economic development and
then did not have within the context of the
documentation any requirement to make sure there
was economic participation of the minority
community by having a certain number of goals
for vendors who are African-American in 1it.

That created strong feelings.

And then, after, again, the Santora
situation, the mayor put together this
Jacksonville Together Process which had some
real possibilities. And I use past tense
because, by consensus, people met and put on the
table the things that bothered them as to what
needed to be done in this community. The mayor
said bring it back to us so that we can
implement it. One of the very things that was
mentioned to be implemented was the minority
set—-aside bill. And if there has ever been
hypocrisy —-- you mean to tell me that after the
disparity study was done and $450,000 spent, and

it's before council for a year, and the council
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president goes to the mayor and says meet with
me about this and doesn't get back, and then
after it's passed unanimously, 19 to zero, and
then 3 weeks later the mayor comes up with not a
bill but some comments about what he doesn't
like about the present bill and what he thinks
are suggestions for something that may work
better, not a bill at the last hour, and then
gets it sustained by gutless council persons
who have voted, first of all, to support a bill
and then, now, all of a sudden, they want to
recommend something else, then we, the people in
a community, get strong feelings.

Whenever it comes to the African—-Americans
in the community, it's, well, let's doing do
another study. Let's look at another plan.
Every single time victory is within the grasp of
the community, it's, well, we have another study
at the last minute. Let's think about that.

And the community is sick of it. It’'s one thing
to deal with not only Jjust facts, but we are
also dealing with the perception of facts. And
we also know the perception of facts is just as
strong, if not stronger, than reality. So we

have to deal with that as well. Let me give you
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one more example and then I'll close out.

The mayor said, "Well, we don't want a
welfare bill." You know, welfare is an
interesting term that gets bounced around like a
political football predicated upon whether it's
convenient to use it or not. When Lockheed and
McDonald Douglas and Martin Marietta need
contracts to stay in business, that's not
considered welfare. It's interesting how we can
bail out savings and loans administrations.
That's not welfare. We can tell a corporation,
if you're don't go to Mexico and stay in the
United States, you won't have to pay taxes.
That's welfare.

But all of sudden when it comes to
African—-Americans being included in the pie of
econonic development, that's welfare. They say
vou shouldn't have to depend on government
contracts; you shouldn't have to depend on any
pool of money. Well, you name one business that
can take a pool of money from them and then ask
them to survive and they can still survive. No
business, black or white, can.

In 1989, a set-aside bill went into law.

It was taken to court by the association of
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general contractors, so the money dried up. So
vou dry up the money and then you say to
businessmen, I'm going to take yvour money from
vou, but why can't you survive? That's an
insult of intelligence. And that's exactly what
they thought of us. Take the mmoney and then
say why can't you survive. If I take your
money, you can't survive, either.

So let me just say this as I close. And
that is that the community is tired of the games
that are plaved, tired of the last-minute
switches, tired of always having to deal with
last—-minute changes from manipulation. And T
think that it is about time that this community
wakes up and realizes that Jacksonville is not
together. And by the games that are being
played, it will not be together.

Let me say something else because I know
how sometimes the media will manipulate what we
say and I think it needs to be understood. We
are not a monolithic community. No one person
speaks for all of us. We are a diverse
community. We have different opinions. We have
conservatives. We have liberals. We have

moderates. We have persons who are middle of
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In Duval County, if yvou look at the
political system in which judges, school board
representatives and c¢ity council representatives
are elected, a racist system is in place that
does not allow equal and proper representation
in a political system. The at-large elected
system guarantees limited access to the
political system. Racial tensions are created
by a controlled system and does not avail itself
to all people. We cannot overlook the media's
role in their mythical projections of a people
and their creation of illusions. There's a very
thin line between i1illusions and reality in this
society. Media's manipulation and suggestions
create tension. The racial tensions in
Jacksonville is at a breaking point. By this I
mean it's very bad. It's reflected many times
in the mannerisms and the attitudes of the
retalil and other service-related employees of
local establishments.

This past football season, complaints
surfaced from some of the African—-American
football players of one of the wvisitor teams
about the racist attitudes and mistreatment by

some of the local establishment owners.
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divided unions. There will be no more divided
apprenticeship programs. I was one of the first
apprentices to enter into a carpenter
apprenticeship program in 1968.

In 1971, Carl Walker Matthews was a
minority contractor for the State of Florida and
Georgia. He worked for a on-the-job training
program. During that year, he also work for a
bonding program that the federal government and
the Small Business Administration would
guarantee 90 percent of the bonding. During
that yvear, they also passed a bill to build 499
houses in the county that would assimilate over
$1.5 million in construction. The nunmber of
these houses in Jacksonville was 235 homes. Of
those 235 homes, 11246 in Section 3, was used.

In 1971, Art Fletcher, who then was the
Assistant Secretary of Liabor and now he's on the
Commission of Civil Rights, came to Jacksonville
and told Jacksonville that Jacksonville and
Philadelphia was using the hometown plan. He
introduced that plan in Jacksonville in 1971.

In 1972, I graduated from an
apprenticeship program and I started my company,

D & M Contracting Company. In 1973, the City of
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Jacksonville came up with the Jacksonvilile
Hometown Plan. The plan was signed into law in
1974 by Mayor Hans Tanzler. On the committee of
a concerned rights group, was Clarence L. Brown,
for the 17 craft unions in Jacksonville, and
Bowden, John Bowden, of the building
association.

In 1976/77, there was a bill challenged by
Remeriz Bill (phonetic). Remeriz Bill was from
California. He was a CPA. He challenged
Section 3 that said local contractors must get
the contracts. By being an Hispanic, he proved
that because he was an Hispanic, he had to have
preferential treatment.

In 1982, there was another case
challenged in Philadelphia by Ron Taylor versus
the City of Pennsylvania. During that time, the
federal government said that it was going to
eliminate all local hometown plans because of
one hometown plan, which was 41CFR, which was
public contracts. Public contracts was to
include all of the public contracts. Public
contracts was a Wash Hayler Act (phonetic) of
1936. It became part of the Small Business Act

of 1958. Public contracts consist of the school
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money.

We also tried to get a hundred and fifty
thousand dollars from the City to do the water
capacity, to bring up the water line, to
increase the water line. The City refused to
give us that. So we lost that project. We lost
the million and a half dollars. You've got to
realize we were the first black development to
try to get money from City HUD to do a project.
We also went to the housing council, the Public
Housing Authority. From 1987, I think, to now,
probably used over 4- or $500 billion worth of
dollars. All of these dollars come from the
state and federal government. These dollars are
also a part of our civil rights.

In 1989, 1988, I bid on a school board
project. It was a roofing project. What I
found in 1985, even though I had my state
license, I had to be certified with all the
major roofing contractors. I went back and went
to school to certify ourselves with all of themn,
all the contractors, all the major companies.

In 1989, we bid on a roofing project for
HUD in Brentwood. The project was like $12

million project. We bid on the roof. The roof
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was like $500,000. During that time, we had a
$2 million job in Orlando. We were going to use
the roofing project from Brentwood --

CHAIRPERSON: Mr. Carter, if you want to,
we can accept vour presentation and make it part
of the record, if you want to do that.

MR. CARTER: We bid on the Brentwood
project. The city refused to give us the
project. We filed a complaint with HUD. They
were laughing and said that you used the wrong
form.

But in March of 1990, I talked to Willie
Padge. He told me that Art Fletcher was the new
Civil Rights Commissioner. We met with Art
Fletcher and he told us that he thought that
everyone had forgot about 11246 in Section 3,
that he was going to do everything he could do
for us at the federal level and that we would do
what we had to do at the grass-roots level. We
also wrote to Congressman Bennett. We wrote him
letters after letters after letters.

After filing a complaint -- it took about
vear before the complaint finally got to
Altanta. We got to Atlanta. We briefed them on

the Section 3 law. Atlanta basically had forgot
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telling the City of Jacksonville Labor
Department, the HUD Department, the School
Board, and all Public Works that fall up under
Public Order 41 to use Executive Order 11246.
The City of Jacksonville laughed at Hazouri when
he signed the executive order. They said that
he was signing the executive order because of ny
efforts. The mayor, existing mayor, he used the
fact that black contractors was getting less
than one percent. We used flyers to state that
Mayor Hazouri refused to use Executive Order
11246. He quoted where the School Board and JEA
put out millions of dollars, over $2 billion,
and the blacks were left out.

We talked to Mayor Ed Austin at this time
and we gave him the information. We said, "If
you was elected mayor" —-- he was meeting at
Bishop Kenney's place —-- and I stood up and
said, "If you was elected mayor, would you
address the issue with black businesses?" He
was reluctant about saying anything. I had
problems with him at that time. After Mayor
Austin came in office, he forgat about what he
said. He forgot about the executive order.

We have bid awards, contracts, from 1987
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to 1992 showing all the bids that was awarded in
JdJacksonville. If you look at these bids, you
see all the contractors that used Executive
Order 11246. We have documentation where the
JEA has 11246 in it.

We also had to fight the Port Authority.
They spent over $200 million in Jacksonville.
At that time, I was president of the Florida
First Coast Black Businesses. We filed a
complaint with them. They said they would use
the 11246 because they was afraid that if the
federal government found out that they wouldn't
get the contract.

In 1991, we also had a contract with -- in
1989, this thing that happened with the city, it
destroyed my roofing company. At the time, we
had the largest roofing company in city. I've
got documentation to show yvou that our work was
good all over the state, but we lost that. We
got together and said we can't stop; we have got
to continue. We lost the Army Corps of
Engineers for $3.5 million in contracts.

CHAIRPERSON: Let me say, we need to be
out of this room. We now found out that we can

go to the Pensacola Room which is out and to the
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left. Let's Jjust adjourn and we'll go out and
we'll be in there by 5:00 and we will continue.

We will now reconvene. We will switch the
microphone over here (indicating).

MR. CARTER: LLike I was saying, after the
City destroyved the roofing part of our company,
the subs got together and we decided to continue
the business. We lobbied the Army Corps of
Engineers through the Small Business
Administration, through the AD Program, for $3.5
million in contracts. Knowing all the time that
it would take a year for those contracts to
start, we sat down and negotiated a contract
with the Reverend A. B. Coleman for St. Andrews
Missionary Baptist Church. At that time,
Reverend Coleman didn't have enough money to do
the church. The architect had guoted him a
price of like $500,000 for the church. He said
he only had like $350,000. I got him a sub and
said, well, basically, if we could do this, we
would be able to show the community the gquality
of work that we can do.

Once we started the project, the bank
realized that they had a good deal on the

project so they wanted to go and pave the
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parking lot. So we said okay, you know, to pave
the parking lot, we got a price, and we got a
price of $80,000, according to the plans.

Once the project got started, the bank had
two different sets of plans. They had a set of
plans that we first bid the project on. And
then once we got started, the architect switched
the set of plans. We had two different bankers,
the first banker by the name of John Kessler, we
negotiated the project with no problem. Before
the project got started, they had another banker
by the name of Raymond Gates (phonetic).

The project went good for about the
first three months. Then they had a new banker
come in by the name of Rob Dunn. Rob Dunn was,
I think, some kin to the president of the North
Carolina bank in the headguarters. Rob Dunn --
me and Reverent Coleman talked to Rob Dunn, and
we explained the church didn't have the funds
and we was working with the church, you know,
doing it at costs. Rob Dunn seemed to work with
us at that time. Then he called the architect.
The architect, when he was talking with Rob
Dunn, Rob Dunn did like a chameleon. The colors

changed right in front of us. Then Reverend
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Coleman says you was planning on working with
us. Now vou're saying you're going to listen to
the architect.

Then, from that time on, we had fremendous
problems with First Union Bank. They tried to
do everything to keep us from doing the project.
They called in the bonding company in March and
asked the bonding company to come take a look at
the project because we were doing shabby work.
Then Reverend Coleman asked them what do you
mean'shabby work, vou know. They said they were
doing inferior work. He said, "Well, they don't
make bricks, they don't make anything, what you
mean inferior?" They say, "Well, I can't put my
hands on it right now, but they're doing
inferior work." That went on for about three or
four months. We couldn't get paid.

Then around June, they got real mad with
us and they said that the electrician at the
time was shabby work and the air-conditioning
man was doing shabby work. Then they realized
that as the general contractor, I had the bond
on the whole Job which all the subs was working
up under me because at the time the subs

couldn't get bonding. So the strategy was, we
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found out, up under the banking regulations was
Banking Regulation 12. We read it to see what
it was talking about. If that bank could have
found anvthing wrong with that project to say
that it was inferior, they could have rejected
that project, which made my bonding company pay
for the project.

During that time, my bond was really --
the bad part is they went to Reverend Coleman
and the board and told Reverend Coleman and the
board that because we had successfully sued the
city, the city was approving our work, but they,
First Union, wasn't afraid of us. They was
going to demand the bonding company to close the
job out. They called the bonding company. My
bonding company refused to do it. The bonding
company got in touch with the city. The city
there wasn't nothing wrong with the work. They
brought in an independent engineer out of the
Orlando. The engineer went in and said that the
architect was overcharging Reverend Coleman for
his services, that the stuff that he was
specifying was too much, he didn't need it, and
there was nothing wrong with the work.

So, at that time, they had delayed the
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project for about six months. We was way
behind. When somebody attacks your bond, you
can't do anything, because if you look at your
disparate study -- what we are going to give you
copy of —-- the pattern in this c¢city is to say
that blacks are not qualified to get bonds. The
pattern is to use the banks to say you're doing
inferior work.

They do that same 0l1d technigue now with
what they're doing now with the set—-aside
program. In order not to use affirmative
action, they're trying to get around it. So
after the bank wanted to leave the money there,
the bonding company asked the bank to leave the
bond. The bank wouldn't give me the money.

They send the money to the bonding conmpany. The
bonding company gave the money to me.

At that time, we filed a complaint with
the city because I was doing a concrete project
with the city because I was a subcontractor for
the city and the banks holds 90 percent of the
city's dollars up under Public Law 41 and 11246.
Then they can't discriminate against another
contractor. If they do, then if they £ind that

they've been discriminated against, the city is




r

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

128

supposed to pull their money out, according to
the way it reads. We filed this complaint with
the City. We have two tapes —- they're about an
hour long -- on filing information that was sent
to me. The City hasn't done anything. They
said they were going to look into it. They was
going to do. But as of today, the City hasn't
done anything about it.

During that same time, because we filed a
complaint with the airport, we was doing a
project for the FAA. I knew when I got that
project on the Small Business Administration AD
Program that I knew I was going to have problems
because we had filed a complaint that the Port
Authority was not using the 11246 and we filed
that complaint.

As soon as we started on that Jjob, they
started trying to £find something wrong with that
project. We had Mr. Argrett's son, James
Argrett, Jr. {(phonetic), who is an architect who
graduated from Harvard, we had him for the
project manager. We told him all his job was to
document everything, Just document everything.
They said that he didn't have the capabilities

3

of running the project. They said he was
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inferior. I had another project manager go out
there who graduated from Florida a2 & M, five
vears as an architect, they said that he was
inferior.

So, once again, the system was at work.

They tried to attack our bond. They said that
our work was inferior. We was behind time. We
had the worst rain of that vear. Everybody in
the area got a 60-day extension. They gave us 9
days. The lawyers came down from Atlanta. We
reviewed the information with them. They found
out that there was nothing wrong with the work.
They didn't have a case. That was last vear,.
last August.

Today, they still over me $200,000, and
that case is pending in the Transportation
Department under Judge Ware, Theodis Ware
{phonetic). Also the case with HUD is in the
General Council's Office. Because of the fight
that we feel we had with HUD up under Section 3
-- I think I sent you a copy of this -- in 1968,
the 11246 in Section 3 was law in Jacksonville.
In 1973, of October, they put it in the
regulation books. Because of our fight in

Jacksonville and because of the efforts of
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Congressman Bennett and because of the efforts
with the Civil Rights Commissioner, now we,
finally, in 24 yvears, have the implementation of
this law.

What we are saying now what they did with
Section 3 because of Rimerez case, because of
our case, Section 3 also falls up under Title 6
and 7 of the Civil Rights Act. So we are saving
in Jacksonville because this law has been on the
books for so long and if you look at the
information, from administration to
administration, they refused to use it.

If you also look in the book, vou will see
the Private Industry Council, the law that was
passed in 1982 to train our kids. It talks
about pre—apprenticeship programs for our kids
from 10th grade can go on to wvarious Jjobs and
work. It also talks about a four-year
apprenticeship class related programs that I
went through in '68. You've got to realize you

only have about four general contractors in this

area. We only have about, I guess, in the State
of Florida, 10 or 15 general contractors. We
don't have no craftsmen. All our black

craftsmen are over 50 years old. But before we
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can compete in the State of Florida, before we
can compete in Jacksonville, we need about 10,
20 years' worth of training. We need training
because you can get the set—-asides, you can do
the Section 3, you can do whatever you want to
do, but if you don't have a work force, you
can't do work.

So until we go back to the schools like
Stanton Vocational and use our civil rights laws

—— this is what we're asking the Commission to

do. We are also asking the Commission to have
the Labor Department -- we filed this complaint;
I've got a copy of that —-- to ask the Labor

Department to come in and look at Jacksonville.
We'll get from how, in 1982, they deliberately,
systematically, tried to get around these laws.
We're asking that you ask the Justice Department
to come in and look at what kind of criminal
action has been going on. We're asking you to
ask the Transportation Department because the
Transportation Department, they adopted
Executive Order 11246 in Section 3 in July of
1983. So the whole city is at fault.

And now they're running around and

pretending that they don't know anything about
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it. And we went to court in 1990. This City
said they didn't have an affirmative action
plan. They told Judge Moore -- Judge Moore
asked them, "Did you have another plan that vou
tried?" This general council told Judge Moore
that the City of Jacksonville never had an
affirmative action plan.

We are submitting to vou today that in
1973 they signed the Jacksonville Hometown Plan.

The Labor Department told them to use Executive
Order 11246 in Section 3. With all our
testimony that we have given you, you'll find
that it's not just me, but most of the black
contractors in this area that go back, way back
to '73 with Mr. Singleton, we have tried to do
something in this area. The system would always
attack them. What they did was they tried to
attack you one at a time. Because we came
together and tried to work as a team, this is
the only reason that I am still alive.

I put in a small business loan last
October, October the 23rd. I haven't received
that loan yet. So we have a problem. Thank you
very much.

CHAIRPERSON: It was certainly very
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some discussion about this situation by the way.
It's her opinion that OFCCP obwviously has the
ultimate responsibility to enforce 11246, and
she's absolutely right about that.

It's my opinion, however, that if the City
receive monies from the federal government and,
in effect, contracts those monies out, then they
have an obligation, as a practical matter, to
ensure that 11246 and any other federal civil
rights law and regulation, for that matter, is
complied with in the utilization of those funds.
And the City apparently, and maybe I'm putting
words in their mouths, they are not relieved of
their responsibility it appears to me. Once
they get the monies through contractual
arrangements, they have some obligation to
ensure that those funds are used in a
nondiscriminatory manner. I've talked with Miss
Gordon (phonetic), about I would like wvery much
to have you talk to her.

MR. MCDUFFIE: I appreciate that. Thank
you.

MR. DOCTOR: We will put you in touch with
her.

CHAIRPERSON: I would like to ask you to
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something in common is the freedom, the right to
exist. It's the right to get through the open
door and seek that happiness.

The following eloquent testimony given by
Asian/Americans are examples of rising concern.
Devastated by personal experiences that
substance to the discrimination extends today.
These testimonies do not, by any means,
encompass the full range of raical bias
experiences, but rather they are offered as a
representation of the kind of discrimination the
Asians have undergone in their daily lives for
survival. Their testimonies are of telling
blows in the Asian fight for human dignity and
equality. I have provided a copy of my research
and some of my personal observations in the
community. I have provided that. Please make
use of 1it.

I have worked with Mr. McDuffie in the
area of addressing the current affirmative
action set—-aside progran. I believe in
Provision 11246. I believe in that provision,
the provision that will include the
vrarticipation of all economically and socially

disadvantaged groups of people regardless of
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race, sex, religion, creed, or any form of their
physical existence.

I, myself, have witnessed in a business
enterprise, a group of five doctors decided to
put up a c¢linic in an area. It was funded. It
was approved for building that clinic. And
later (inaudible). The systemic form of
discrimination worked done by an interest group
in the community believing that if that c¢linic
was put up and these doctors really affored
gquality service of medical care, those interest
groups might rationalize to say it will take our
patients and we will lose the entire
{inaudible). The city building inspector went
in and inspected the building. Suddenly, there
was discrepancies.

Along with that, the financial institution
that volunteered to guarantee the loan backed
out. I ask you, what is the reason? Nothing
but because of the fear of the interest group.

Another situation, a female Asian/American
asked the HRS to convert the (inaudible) into a
boarding home to serve the homeless. One
council woman Jjust smeared a negative statement

in a discriminatory form, too. She was fired.










10

11

12

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

141

there or someone in that delegation was there to

speak about some of the problems or they knew

that you were coming into the city. In this
city —-- and this a part of the problem -- that
Jacksonville is controlled. And it is

controlled by persons who get the information
and give it only to those persons who they want
to have it.

And that is the reason why you came here
today and you used such a small room in the
beginning because there was no intention for the
black community to know that you were coming and
to give them an opportunity to come out and tell
vou that we have some serious problems in this
community.

MR. DOCTOR: That is not true.

MS. GIBSON: That is our feeling, sir.

And I think your actions, by being in the
smaller room, shows that you relied on someone
in this community or you got some indication
from this community that black folks in this
town are satisfied, that we are happy, that we
are not having problems.

And as a result of that, you did not set

up this public hearing to accommodate the number
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of black folks in this community who are having
serious problems. You've heard them all day.
This is just a small number. There are those
who moan and groan with us who cannot come out
to speak. This is just a representative of
those people who have had enough, who have
reached the point that we can no longer remain
silent in this community. And I think we need
to say that.

Let me share with you a copy of an
editorial that I am sending on behalf of the
black elected officials to the Florida Times
Union. And I will give you a copy because they
may choose not to print it. It's called equal
business opportunity program and back to the
set—-aside.

And it says: What's good for the goose is
good for the gander. For two years, many
citizens participated in public hearings and
committee meetings to help establish a basis for
a government-—-sponsored program that would comply
with the reguirements of the law and give
minorities, blacks and women -- and I understand
the gentleman here because the disparity study

only documents those two categories, blacks and
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women —-- the opportunity to become a part of the
mainstream by owning and operating their own
businesses.

While these public hearings were taking
place, it seems that some groups were meeting
privately to stop the progranm. The complaints
we are now hearing are not new. Many of them
were discussed during the public hearings and
the ordinance was supposed to be drafted by the
our General Council's Office to assure
compliance with the law. The mayor and one
group -- and you've heard comments from people
here about some of these different groups in our
community —-- have called the ordinance a welfare
program, a qguota bill, a race preference bill.
By choosing these buzz words, the mavor and this
group successfully killed this particular
ordinance. The council members who changed
their previous votes had forgotten that they had
agreed on June 23rd, 1992 that the program was
good for the community.

Over the years in this community the
council and the leadership in this community
fought to set aside public funds for downtown

economic development, for reopening the Harbor
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Masters, for the automatic skyway expresss and
for many other projects that were pushed for the
good of the community even though there was
wide—-spread opposition to them.

Now this same leadership, after having the
opportunity to discuss the egual business
opportunity ordinance is unsure as to its worth.
The plan presented by the mayvor would set aside
public funds to give to white-male dominated
businesses, private sector, to employ minorities
and train them in business skills. The message
from the mayor and the people who support such a
plan is clear. Keep minority business
development under the control of white majority
business. Let them decide what training is best
for blacks and women. Let them decide how long
one should work for them before they can start a
business. Let them decide who their competitors
will be. Isn't this the same as hiring the fox
to watch the chicken house? I'm going to leave
this with you because I believe it reflects
where we are in this city.

What has happened over the yvears is that
we are changing alternatives; we are changing

plans. And one thing that clearly is missing is
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result, our community is confused. Everyvbody in
this community is confused. As long as there is
confusion, then how can we move forward? And
that's the ball game that has been played in
Jacksonville for 30 years. Create as mnmuch
confusion as you can and we can continue with
our master plan of we control and you stay
dependent on us.

We are asking vou to look at this from a
total picture. Where was the ball dropped? Why
is it that one or two people can tell you that
we are doing okay in Jacksonville and you accept
that?

MR. DOCTOR: Well --

CHAIRPERSON: I would just 1like to clarity
that and then I'1ll let Bobby speak. This
committee chose to come to Jacksonville, not
because we heard Jacksonville was all right, but
because in terms of our task of looking at areas
in terms increased racial tension throughout the
State of Florida that Jacksonville was
identified as a city in which there was
significant increases in areas of racial

tension.




T

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

148

It was not scheduled for a hearing. It
was scheduled for a half-day meeting for our
committee. And why we are coming here is to
hear from some of the citizens in terms of those
conditions. It was not because anybody has said
that Jacksonville was okay.

MS. GIBSON: Well, yvou used the key word

increase. What I'm telling yvou is the problems
have not changed. They have been the same way
in this community for years. There has not been

increased racial tensions in this community.
What you're seeing is more enlightenment by the
community and the community coming together to
realize that somebody has been playing games
with us for too many yvears and we're not going
anywhere as a result of it.

MR. DOCTOR: Let me make this comment; T
think it's in order. As Brad has indicated, we
are here because we recognize yvou have a
problem. And I'd like to ask everybody in this
room how many other federal agencies have been
through Jacksonville lately to express concern
about what's going on in this city?

I ask you, please, to look at this agenda.

Look at this agenda. And for those of you who
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have been here all day long in that room, you
heard what the folks on this agenda had to say.
It didn't sound like a whitewash to me. It
didn't sound like people who were not
representing what is going on in Jacksonville to
me. Okavy.

But I think also we need to look beyond
what is going on in the city right now. We have
been through I don't know how many states in
this country. The same thing that you all are
complaining about that's going on in
Jacksonville right now is going on in every
major urban area of America.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It includes the
rural areas, too.

MR. DOCTOR: But particularly every major
urban area of America, believe me, which is why
we have adopted this project designed to look at
racial tensions not only here in Florida, but at
the national level as well. We're doing the
same thing in Tennessee, we're doing the same
thing in Kentucky, North Carolina, South
Carolina. The same kinds of problems that
vou're complaining about, we have had some 12

different meetings with folks in different
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communities in those states that I have Jjust
described or pointed out to say the same thing
vou're saving.

I guess what I'm sayving is in the 1980s,
in the 1980s, now many of us don't want to face
up to this, but the ultraconservative forces in
America gained control. They redefined civil
rights in America. Don't kid vourselves. Even
inside of this agency, under the direction of
Clarence Pendleton (phonetic) and Linda Traves
(phonetic), they redefined c¢ivil rights in this
country. That is where when HUD's budget was
cut by 70 percent, we didn't hear a lot of noise
around the country. When the civil rights
program were cut 50, 60 percent we didn't hear a
lot of noise around the country. When
deregulation occurred, we didn't hear a lot of
noise around the country.

The S & I, scandals now are a direct result
of deregulation. The problems we're having with
the airline corporations and companies are
reflective of deregulation. The banking
industry and the fact that a lot of black folks
can't get loans are reflective of deregulation.

But we didn't hear a lot of noise around the
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country during that time challenging and
prodding and insisting that the national
government be responsible to everybody. We
didn't hear that.

We now have a guy who is chairing this
agency who is about something, in the person of
Arthur Fletcher. And believe you me, we're
getting rid of all of those o0ld people. All
those 0ld people who were there some years ago,
who obviously were not pro-civil rights, and we
had a lot of them in this agency, but we're
cleaning them out. We're cleaning them from all
of these committees we have. We're cleaning
them out from the staff in Washington. They,
obviously, wiped out seven of our ten regional
offices around the country including mine.

CHAIRPERSON: Bobby lost his job after
that for several years.

MR. DOCTOR: So we didn't hear a lot of
cries, a lot of human cries, from around the
country. The point that I want to make is we
are trying right now to say to this country that
something is terribly wrong. Something 1is

terribly wrong.

Again, I've got to say I just got back
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from L. A. And I can assure you, if you think
vyou're having problems here in Jacksonville, vou
go to L. A. If vou think the yvoung black males
are dying in unusually high numbers here in
Jacksonville, go to L. A. where it is all coming
from. And I am saying to you that we are making
a concerted effort to try to deal with all of
these problems as best we can. We need your
help.

Don't for one minute think that I am the
enemy. Don't for one minute think the
Commission on Civil Rights or this advisory
commission is the enemy. We want more than vou
can possibly imagine for this country to be what
it ought to be, for this county to live out its
true meaning. We want this country to be the
best it can possibly be for evervbody. And
that's why we're here.

And that's why I take so personally some
of comments that are made suggesting and
inferring that somehow or another we have not
talked to the right people or that somehow or
another —-- we may not have talked to everbody
that everybody thought we should have talked

with. But I can assure you, nobody who came
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on the same ball game.

I saw Miss Dennis in February and we all
talked about nothing was going to happen. I
told her exactly what happened in Dallas. And
I told the people who are sitting here today,
Miss Washington and other people, that the mayor
was going to turn on the black community Jjust
like the mayor of Dallas turned on the black
community after receiving 96 percent of the
black vote in an election turned on them even
worse than this mayor turned on them. It's all
the same plan and there it almost got to the
neck.

And what I'm suggesting that i1f someone
doesn't do anything and I don't think that this
community, because its been in battle for so
many years, that the federal government —-- and
if you say an advisory commission, I'm sure you
were talking about the Department of
Transportation, yvyou should also have the U. S.
Justice Department.

I'm suggesting that in this town right
now, we have organized crime elements,
specifically John Santora, who, when I was on

television on Channel 17 back in 1984, for
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almost 12 minutes, I discussed the bribery and
extortion in the circuit courts of this town.
Only after he threatened Channel 4 and 12, it
never even got on the news. The man who stopped
that investigation, from what I'm hearing, and T
don't have specifically facts, but from plenty
reliable sources, was Ed Austin in the DA's
office. He stopped the investigation of John
Santora and that was back in 1984. So what I'm
suggesting that we have here, where everybody's
always concerned about people being extorted and
not doing their political duty, I'm suggesting
we have people here that need to be investigated
thoroughly to see 1f they're not carryving out
the aims of this community or if they're
carrying out the aims of other specific
individuals to start racial tension. The FBI,
when I walked in their office in 1984, showed me
a stack this big on John Santora on bribery and
extortion (indicating). Why weren't those cases
investigated? Why weren't those cases brought
to trial. What I'm hearing is that E4d Austin
drove the federal prosecutor out of this town on
this Yankee coming in routine and everything

else.
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I think that what we need in this town is

a real good congressional investigation of this

mayor's office and this town. What I'm
suggesting -- they did this in Dallas when I was
there —-- they did bring in congressmen in that

community and made them really looking at facts
and put people under oath with the penality of
perjury. Nobody is under oath in this town
right now. And if vou don't do, Jacksonville is
going to be the start of racial wviolence 1like
vyou've never seen. There's always been a spark
and this town really hasn't been in a position
to start it. I hope they don't start it. But
if this government doesn't look at the mess that
they've created over the years and the lies, and
if they don't it, God help them because it's
going to come here. There's nothing to stop it
and that momentum is there. And I would hope
that y'all can at least go back to the people in
Washington to tell them how bad this situation
is.

MR. GAINES: My name is Lee Gaines,
G-a—-i-n-e-s. I represent a class of black
applicants and employees at the naval station.

First of all, I want to thank you, the
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Commission, for giving me an opportunity to
address you. It's my understanding that the
Commission monitors the EEO program which
includes government agencies.

And I'm going to be brief, but I would
like to share a brief problem with the Navy's
EEO progranm. Ladies and Gentleman of the
Commission, the program is dead, I believe.
Based on information I received under the
Freedom of Information Act, I'm going to share
the hiring and firing practices from 1988 to
present. The number of black males hired from
1988 to present —-- and 25,000 is not that much
money and this is really what you're talking
about; this is what it's all about =-- the number
of black males hired in positions of $25,000 and
above is zero. The number -- and we're talking
about from 1988 to present; I was not able to
get the earlier figures -- but the number of
black females hired in positions of 25,000 and
above is zero.

From 1988 to present, the total number of
black males hired and the total number in the
work force of black males is approximately 15.

The total number of black females is
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approximately 16. From 1988 to present, most of
the jobs above $25,000 do not say for whites
only, but they do say for the Naval Station at
Mayport. Ladies and Gentlemn, there's no blacks
in the system to even have those jobs. They
would not open those jobs up.

The filing of an EEO complaint by a
person singled out as a troublemaker puts yvou on
the hit 1list. I've been on the hit 1list for the
last four years. I filed an EEO complaint,
starting formal complaints, not informal
complaints. I've been working with the systemn
longer than that. But I don't want to talk
about the former complaints now. I £filed an EEO
complaint in June of 1990. I filed another one
in October of 1990. I filed one in February of
1991 and another one in April of 1991. The Navy
has of yet to conduct an investigation.

I've also filed a class action complaint
and that was filed in February of '91. Still no
investigation on that complaint. So in
September -- I'm cutting this down, I'm not
going to go through all of it -- in September of
1991, I filed a civil lawsuit and requested the

court to appoint me an attorney. The court
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denied my request and suggested that I contact
the lawyers around this town and the
Jacksonville Bar Association. Ladies and
Gentleman of the Commission, the Jacksonville
Bar Association does not have one discrimination
attorney on their staff. That's why you cannot
get discrimination suit processed through the
system.

I pursued my complaint by myself through
the court system in order to try to correct this
injustice. And today, I'm still pursuing this
complaint. I've also contacted another lawyer
and he's looking at my case right now.
Hopefully, he will take both of the cases, but I
don't know as of yvet. The naval attorneys —--
and notice I use attorneys because it's more
than one -- the U. S. attorneys all are using
our tax dollars to condone this injustice. They
would not make an attempt to investigate, to
substantiate or deny my charges, but they would
vyet tell me to take them to court because they
know I don't know have as much money as they've
got in the tax system. But I'm going to go on,
to continue to fight this, as much as I c¢an.

I ask the Commission -- I don't know
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whether or not you can do it -- I, respectfully,
ask you to intervene in our class action
lawsuit. And any information that you need --
and I was not planning on talking with the
Commission, but I will provide information to
substantiate what I'm saying here at a later
date -- any information you need, I will be glad
to give it to you.

Along that same line, I know we have
talked quite a bit about 11246, which is the
affirmative action for the contracting, et
cetera. Along that same line, we have an
executive order also, 11478, which applies to
employees in the federal government. I would
like to know who is responsible for enforcing
that law. It may as well not exist, but it's
along the same line as 11246. And I will just
cut my comments right there. If the Commission
has any guestions or comments, I will glad to
answer them.

CHAIRPERSON: I think we ought to make a
quick comment. The Commission does not that
authority to intervene in lawsuits. But what
the Commission can do, after our staff looks at

it, we can, as the Authority Advisory
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Commission, ask the Commission to request that
the Navy investigate. You know, we do ask the
Commission, as the chair, to put pressure on the
federal agency to do their proper investigation.
But as far as intervening in the lawsuit,
that's not within the authority of the
Commission.

MR. GRIMES: Let me ask you this, and I'm
not trying to be argumentative. Is there any
way that we can ask maybe another agency to
investigate because it's like a chicken watching
the hen house? Are yvou following what I'm
saying? And I'm not trying to be funny. I'm
just tryving to be realistic.

MR. DOCTOR: Naval employees are governed
by the same federal c¢civil rights law and
regulations that everybody else is governed by.
There is, for example, Title 7 of the 1964 Civil
Rights Act. That comes into play. And, of
course, as you well know, EEOC enforces that
particular title. Have yvou filed a complaint
with EEOC?

MR. GAINES: They only referred me back to
the same agency you're talking about, back to

the Navy.
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CHATIRPERSON: That is the process of being
changed. They can't do it directly.

MR. DOCTOR: What happens is you have to
let the complaint run its course within the
naval system. I assumed you filed a complaint
with your EO officer --

MR. GAINES: Yes.

MR. DOCTOR: —— in the Navy? And that's
run its course. And you're saying, in effect,
that nobody at this point will accept your
complaint?

MR. GAINES: Well, they would not even
investigate the complaint. Normally, the
procedure is the complaint be investigated and
completed in a hundred and eighty days. It's
been over three years and no -—-

MR. DOCTOR: Well, it has to be
investigated, I think, within a six-month
period. And if you're saying that the complaint
is two or three years old, the statute of
limitations may have run. Let me say this,
though. I don't want you to leave here thinking
that nothing can be done. Send me a letter
registering yvour complaint and I will be in

touch with the commander at the naval base and
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see what the devil is going on.

REVEREND RASBERRY: Chairman and Mr.
Doctor and the Commission, I'm Reverend Wallace
S. Rasberry, Junior, Pastor of the Central
Baptist Institutional Church here in
Jacksonville, Florida. I'm a native of
Jacksonville, Florida. I grew up in
Jacksonville, Florida. I'm a product of
Jacksonville, Florida. The only time that I've
been away from Jacksonville is to college, in
the Armed Service and back here.

I love Jacksonville, but Jacksonville has
to be changed. When I was boy growing up in
this town, when Jackson High School, Lee High
School, and Fletcher High School had tracks, we
didn't have nowhere to run. We ran in Wilder
Park, only 220. When Bob Hayes came along and
after (inaudible) came along, in Jacksonville,
we run on a 220 track. And the public schools
would not let us use the 440 tracks that the
white schools had. So we used the 220 tracks.
Ball was coaching at Gilbert.

And I was racing at Stanton. And we made
a track schedule. And we converted a 220 track

to a 440 track by letting our sprinters run at
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top speed. Say they were running a hundred-yard
dash, we would overtrailin with 300 and come back

and undertrain with 75 and then 40 to a hundred.
When Bob Hayes left here, Gilbert didn't have a

track. He was running in the street.

Our kids wouldn't come back to
Jacksonville because they say Jacksonville was
racist and didn't have any hope here in
Jacksonville. They went to Miami, they went to
Tampa, they went up in the country, everywhere
but Jacksonville. There was a group of teachers
and principals that made a certified effort to
encourage our kids to come back to Jacksonville.
But when they came back to Jacksonville,
Jacksonville was just the same. And they
stayed.

I played on the first football team,
college football team, in the Gator Bowl,
Bethune Cookman and Mars Brown College. My
mother was a part of the 13 black members of
this county that went to the mayvor and to the
council to get blacks to play there. I was a
member of the first black scout troop to be in
an international scout jamboree from

Jacksonville, Florida. I'm the only one, the
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first one, to come from the State of Florida.

We encouraged these kids to come back
here. But when they come back, they've got to
deal with the same system that I came under.
It's larger, but it's more sophisticated than
anything yvyou ever seen.

Now I don't want you to be mistaken about
what the mayor knows. The mayor was the state
attorney. He and John Delaney ran the systen.
We couldn't get him to investigate HUD. It took
$14 million to bring Blodgett Homes up to a
livable place. And they've had it in the City
Council. They said the people deserved more
than that. Where are they going to move? Our
church is located right across from Blodgett
Homes. Where were they going to go? Oh, they
put them out. Had it look ike a bombshell up
there, worse than Iragqg. Kids and girls were
walking through there. It took something to
fight them to make them even board it up.

HUD didn't start getting like that
vyesterday. Its been getting like that all the
time, but where was the money going? You've got
to find out. Let me tell you: Jacksonville is

funny in this respect. They know how to get to
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certain so-called leaders in this town. No one
addressed that. You go back and check who gets
what. And they get to them and they can't speak
for us.

Nobody black in here can go to a bank and
get a big loan. You can't get it. You can't
get it. But any American of a fair complexion,
can have a record as long as this room, and come
and shame them right out of their booths and
give it to them right 1like that. Housing is
atrocious in here.

The city, they built schools on the
outlying areas. We fought the thing. And
there's nothing is going to happen, not a thing.
And then they say y'all got high crime in your
area. How can you have but high crime when the
kids can't get training. They've got a skill
center on Wilson Boulevard. They've got another
skill center on the Westside. The skill center
on Wilson Boulevard and the Westside was built
off the same plan. The only thing is they left
the wings off, the legs off, over here and put
the wings off over here (indicating). When the

kids go over here (indicating), they come out

with an apprenticeship and ready to work. You
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go over here (indicating), they have haven't
even put -- that bond issue money, they sold a
black and the blacks sold us.

And we say 1t's wrong. There are too many
people left out. Oh, but they say they're going
to give it to us. They haven't given us one
thing. The structure of inner city where most
of the blacks are caught is in the poor
(inaudible) water standing intrastructure not in
place, drainage or nothing else. You can't help
from that. And this is what they've done. No
black in Duval County has enough money to bring
a boat load a train load or an airplane load of
dope into the city.

Let me tell you: They need to investigate
the bankers, big business, big lawyers that got
that money, but we can't. So they put it into
the black area. As soon as the black man has
built up a little and, he built it up big
enough, come and take his place, his house, car.

But these are the things that we are facing in
here.

And they will tell you —-- some of them
spoke this morning -- they said what they said

because the crowd was here and we were waiting
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on them to say something out of the way. But as
set down, they take Jjobs. You can't get a job.
How can you raise a family? What can you depend
on if you don't have a job?

And the Jjobs that they've got, oh, veah,
they say, "We're going to train your kids. We
go out there and put a red cap on them and start
picking up paper.” That's not training. That's
not training. We need the vocational-type
shops. We need high-tech shops so when a boy
comes out of school, he know how to use that
machine to test the cars and things. Ain't no
testing out there. And they say, "You'll be all
right. Just wait."” How long? How long? The
waiting is over here in Jacksonville. I'm here
to tell you, the waiting is over. This place is
supposed to be the biggest city in the world, in
the United States, land wise, but with this mess
going in here now, it's going to level it out.

MR. DOCTOR: Reverend, let me interrupt
vou for a second.

REVEREND GAINES: I'm through.

MR. DOCTOR: I remember some years ago,

vou all may remember a guy who lived this

community =-- he's now deceased -- Earl Johnson.
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Earl was a member of this committee,
interestingly enough, back during the '70s.
Earl and T had some rather heated arguments and
discussions about the pros and the cons of
consolidation.

At that particular time, as I recall, as
vyou all approached the gquestion of
consolidation, I think blacks -- and this has
nothing to do with race; it has more to do with
power than race —-- but at that particular time,
I think blacks were approaching 51 percent of
the population in the City of Jacksonville.
There was a concerted effort made to consolidate
the county and the c¢ity governments. And as a
result of that consolidation, Earl supported it;
I opposed it. I don't live here and didn't live
here back then, but I thought it was a bad idea.
And the only reason it came up was because of
the fact that blacks were approaching 51 percent
of the population of Jacksonville.

Now the point that I think needs to be
made now, there is a connection between what
took place back in the '70s and what is
happening now in terms of what you have just

described as the unresponsiveness of government.
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And so I guess the point that I'm trying to make
is, in the future, we probably all need to be
more sensitive to the decisions that are made,
vou know, in the heat of the moment. Earl, rest
his soul, at that point, if he were here today,
I'm sure would make the same kinds of comments I
am making right now about this whole guestion of
consolidation.

I don't know that I've railised a guestion
so much as I've made a comment. But I think
while I have the floor, it's important that we
~— we have a contract with this lady in the
corner here who is typing all of this, jotting
all of this down on that machine there, and
we're going have to l1limit, if we can, so that
everybody can get a chance to make a guick
comment before we leave. Now we can stay here
with you all night long, but this lady is going
to have to leave because her contract calls for
her to leave at a given time.

REVEREND GAINES: One thing, like when we
talked this morning, when you come into a city
that has been downtrodden like Jacksonville has
and we have four elected officials in the City

Council, two on the School Board, and three in
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the Legislature, one senator, and one running
for -- well, two running for the National Senate
and they aren't -- we elected them to represent
us and they are a part of this.
Warren Jones was the first one to receive
back to back power of Chairman of the City
Counciland he wasn't included in this. I know
vyou've got a cross section, but I'm sayving maybe
this will serve to help you if you go into an
another city of this magnitude. The black
community, in general, was very, very upset with
the agenda. Gwen was right in what she said.
We know that you're doing the best that you can.
We appreciate you coming because you're the
first agent that has come in here to try to see
some things. But what you see on the surface
and what's up under there will be two different
things.

MR. DOCTOR: Well, Reverend, let me say
this. We understand you're hurt. That's why we
are here. Believe me, we understand your hurt.
And, again, I say that's why we are here.

REVEREND GAINES: Would you put material
things over human needs?

MR. DOCTOR: Let me say this, Reverend.
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We understand you're hurt and, again, that's why
we're here. If we have made some mistakes, they
have been mistakes of the head and not of the
heart, okay. But we would not be here 1f we
didn't understand vour hurt and didn't recognize
and appreciate your hurt. And I say that
sincerely.

REVEREND GAINES: Thank you.

MS. GREEN: My name is Gwen Lee Green.
Well, first of all, this is the announcement
that came out in the paper about this meeting
today and I saw it and I just clipped it out to
make sure I didn't lose it because I couldn't
find it again in a million years. It was Jjust
by chance that I found out about this at
approximately 11:00 o'clock last night. I work
like 35 miles away from here. So I took 1like
one half day off because I felt that it was very
for important that I be here today Jjust to hear
even 1f I not had a chance to address issues
personally.

But some of issues, you know, that we were
discussing, they are not discriminative of
Jacksonville. This is a people problem and

there are people everywhere. From city to city
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to city, it is all the same. There are people
everywhere you go and that is basically the
problem.

My concern really is based on the system
that I have been employed in for 23 years and I
have seen this over and over again. My parents,
Wwe were among the poorest here in Jacksonville
and they taught me to work. Whatever type work
you do, do it well, and it will eventually pay
off in the end and all this wonderful stuff. I
have been working and working and I don't see it
pay off. What I see is the people that I train,
they get the promotions, and I get a pat on the
back. And I'm told that I'm a troublemaker
because —- and to me and after seeing what
happened to Rodney King, this has been a mental
thing that has been happening to black people as
a whole and it was only seen as a visual thing
to Rodney King. It's like we are doing this to
you, however, we are not doing it because we are
telling you it's not happening. You know it's a
mental thing. And what happens is you're
retaliated against when you do file a complaint.
I have filed a complaint against the agency that

I work with. I won the complaint. However, I
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was retaliated against. You know, I am on the
hit 1list. So what do you do?

I have a l2-year-o0ld daughter and I am
trying to instill in her principles of work
ethic because all around in our neighborhood,
she sees children her age on drugs or pushing
drugs. And I am telling her don't get involved
with this. But then when she sees the plight
that I'm going through trying to do what is
right within the system, I start gquestioning
myself. How can I go next door and tell this
young man not to sell drugs? What should I tell
him, to work your way through college, to get
involved in employment in the system and see
what happens to vou? It's very discouraging.
And right now I'm just caught like just between
thoughts. What do you tell voung people?

And this is why we have like c¢crime, black-
on—-black crime, within the community. There is
so much despair in the black community. What do
vou do? The mother and father are definitely
having problems in the work place. So what can
we tell our children, to go to school and get a
good education?

MR. DOCTOR: Is that a guestion?
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MR. CARTER: What can we tell them? Well,
it's not really a question. It's a question,
but we all know the answer.

MR. DOCTOR: Well, I'11 tell you what we
tell them. We tell them that at some point some
of us are going to wake up and recognize that we
have failed. And at some point, some of us in
recognition of that failure are going to begin
to make demands of this system the way demands
were made in past years through approaches that
we utilized in past years, effective approaches.
We say to them, and we have to say to them,
particularly I'm concerned about those young
black males between the ages 18 and 24, they
have literally opted out of the system, opted
particularly out of the economic system. And a
lot of us, including a lot of us around this
table, have come down on them because, oh,
vyou're involved in the drug trade; you ain't
nothing but a criminal. I heard that out in L.
A. We were talking about ways to bring that
city back together again and we met with some
traditional black leaders who took the position
that they did not want to involve the leadership

of the gangs because they were "criminals and
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don't spent your money there. And they'll get
the message.

And I say to you all, thank you, again,
for coming here.

MR. DOCTOR: Thank you.

CHATIRPERSON: I think that's the statement
to end on.

(Thereupon, the meeting was concluded at

6:25 o'clock p.m.)







